Report of Survey for Alleged Violations of 42 CFR 489.24 and the Related Requirements at 489.20 (I), (m), (q) and (r) 

[The Emergency Medical Treatment and Labor Act and Related Provider Agreement Requirements]

	Name of Facility


	Medicare Provider Number


	Facility Identification Number



	Address                                                                                                                                                                                


	State License Number



	Chief Executive Officers (CEO)
	CEO's Telephone Number


	CEO's Facsimile Number



	Federal Complaint Number
	State Complaint Number


	Survey Start Date


	Survey End Date



	Surveyor's Name


	Surveyor's Discipline


	Surveyor's Identification Number



	CODE
	REGULATION
	MET
	NOT MET
	N/A
	EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

	A000
	( An entrance conference was conducted on [date] __________________________ at [time] 

________________________  in [location] ________________________________________ 

In attendance was (were) [attendee(s)] ___________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ .

( The purpose of the survey and the survey process were explained.

( An opportunity was provided for questions and discussion.

( Complaint number __________________________________________ was investigated for alleged

violations of 42 CFR 489.24 and the related requirements at 42 CFR 489.20 (l), (m), (q) and (r) , per Sections 5300 – 5370 and Appendix V of the State Operations Manual ( CMS Pub. 7).

( _______________________________________________________________________________ 

was found to be in compliance with 42 CFR 489.24 and related requirements at 42 CFR 489.20 (l), (m), (q) and (r).

( An exit conference was conducted on [date] __________________________ at [time] 

________________________  in [location] ________________________________________ 

In attendance was (were) [attendee(s)] ___________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ .

( The preliminary findings of the survey and the next steps in the survey process were explained.

( An opportunity was provided for questions and discussion.

( An opportunity was provided for the facility to provide evidence of compliance with those requirements for which non-compliance had been determined.

( No such evidence was alleged or proffered.


	
	
	
	


	CODE
	REGULATION
	MET
	NOT MET
	N/A
	EXPLANATORY

	A400
	489.20(l)
	§489.20. Basic Section 1866 commitments relevant to Section 1867 responsibilities.

The provider agrees, in the case of a hospital as defined in §489.24(b), to comply with §489.24.

	
	
	
	

	A401
	489.20(m)
	The provider agrees, in the case of a hospital as defined in §489.24(b), to report to CMS or the State survey agency any time it has reason to believe it may have received an individual who has been  transferred in an unstable emergency medical condition from another hospital in violation of the requirements of §489.24(e).


	
	
	
	

	A402
	489.20(q)
	The provider agrees, in the case of a hospital as defined  in §489.24(b), to post conspicuously in any emergency department or in a place or places likely to be noticed by all individuals entering the emergency department, as well as those individuals waiting for examination and treatment in areas other than traditional emergency departments (that is, entrance, admitting area, waiting room, treatment area) a sign (in a form specified by the Secretary) specifying the rights of individuals under section 1867 of the Act with respect to examination and treatment for emergency medical conditions and women in labor; and


	
	
	
	

	
	
	The provider agrees to post conspicuously (in a form specified by the Secretary) information indicating whether or not the hospital or rural primary care hospital (e.g., critical access hospital) participates in the Medicaid program under a State plan approved under Title XIX.


	
	
	
	

	A403
	489.20(r)(1)
	The provider agrees, in the case of a hospital as defined  in §489.24(b), (including both the transferring and receiving hospitals), to maintain medical and other records related to individuals transferred to or from the hospital for a period of 5 years from the date of the transfer.


	
	
	
	

	A404
	489.20(r)(2) and 489.24(j)(1&2)
	§489.20(r)(2)

The hospital (including both the transferring and receiving hospitals), must maintain a list of physicians who are on call for duty after the initial examination to provide further evaluation and/or treatment necessary to stabilize an individual with an emergency medical condition.


	
	
	
	

	
	
	§489.24(j)(1)

Each hospital must maintain an on-call list of physicians on its medical staff in a manner that best meets the needs of the hospital's patients who are receiving services required under this section in accordance with the resources available to the hospital, including the availability of on-call physicians.


	
	
	
	

	
	
	§489.24(j)(2)(i)

The hospital must have written policies and procedures in place to respond to situations in which a particular specialty is not available or the on-call physician cannot respond because of circumstances beyond the physician's control.
	
	
	
	

	
	
	§489.24(j)(2)(ii)

The hospital must have written policies and procedures in place to provide that emergency services are available to meet the needs of patients with emergency medical conditions if it elects to permit on-call physicians to schedule elective surgery during the time that they are on call or to permit on-call physicians to have simultaneous on-call duties.


	
	
	
	

	A405
	489.20(r)(3)
	The provider agrees, in the case of a hospital as defined in §489.24(b) (including both the transferring and receiving hospitals), to maintain a central log on each individual who comes to the emergency department, as defined in §489.24(b), seeking assistance and whether he or she refused treatment, was refused treatment, or whether he or she was transferred, admitted and treated, stabilized and transferred, or discharged.

The provisions of this regulation apply to all hospitals that participate in Medicare and provide emergency services.


	
	
	
	

	A406
	489.24(a) and 489.24(c) 
	In the case of a hospital that has an emergency department, if an individual (whether or not eligible for Medicare benefits and regardless of ability to pay) "comes to the emergency department", as defined in paragraph (b) of this section, the hospital must provide an appropriate medical screening examination within the capability of the hospital's emergency department, including ancillary services routinely available to the emergency department, to determine whether or not an emergency medical condition exists.  The examination must be conducted by an individual(s) who is determined qualified by hospital bylaws or rules and regulations and who meets the requirements of §482.55 of this chapter concerning emergency services personnel and direction.


	
	
	
	

	
	
	If an emergency medical condition is determined to exist, the hospital must provide any necessary stabilizing treatment, as defined in paragraph (d) of this section, or an appropriate transfer as defined in paragraph (e) of this section.  If the hospital admits the individual as an inpatient for further treatment, the hospital's obligation under this section ends, as specified in paragraph (d)(2) of this section.


	
	
	
	

	
	
	Sanctions under this section for inappropriate transfer during a national emergency do not apply to a hospital with a dedicated emergency department located in an emergency area, as specified in section 1135(g)(1) of the Act.
	
	
	
	

	
	
	If an individual comes to a hospital's dedicated emergency department and a request is made on his or her behalf for examination or treatment for a medical condition, but the nature of the request makes it clear that the medical condition is not of an emergency nature, the hospital is required only to perform such screening as would be appropriate for any individual presenting in that manner, to determine that the individual does not have an emergency medical condition.


	
	
	
	

	A407
	489.24(d)(1-3)
	(1)Subject to the provisions of paragraph (d)(2) of this section, if any individual (whether or not eligible for Medicare benefits) comes to a hospital and the hospital determines that the individual has an emergency medical condition, the hospital must provide either, within the capabilities of the staff and facilities available at the hospital, for further medical examination and treatment as required to stabilize the medical condition; or for transfer of the individual to another medical facility in accordance with paragraph (e) of this section.


	
	
	
	

	
	
	(2) Exception:  Application to inpatients.

(i) If a hospital has screened an individual under paragraph (a) of this section and found the individual to have an emergency medical condition, and admits that individual as an inpatient in good faith in order to stabilize the emergency medical condition, the hospital has satisfied its special responsibilities under this section with respect to that individual

(ii) This section is not applicable to an inpatient who was admitted for elective (nonemergency) diagnosis or treatment.

(iii)  A hospital is required by the conditions of participation for hospitals under Part 482 of this chapter to provide care to its inpatients in accordance with those conditions of participation.


	
	
	
	

	
	
	(3)  Refusal to consent to treatment. 

 A hospital meets the requirements of paragraph (d)(1)(i) of this section with respect to an individual if the hospital offers the individual the further medical examination and treatment described in that paragraph and informs the individual (or a person acting on the individual's behalf) of the risks and benefits to the individual of the examination and treatment, but the individual (or a person acting on the individual's behalf) does not consent to the examination or treatment.  The medical record must contain a description of the examination, treatment, or both if applicable, that was refused by or on behalf of the individual.  The hospital must take all reasonable steps to secure the individual's written informed refusal (or that of the person acting on his or her behalf).  The written document should indicate that the person has been informed of the risks and benefits of the examination or treatment, or both.


	
	
	
	

	A408
	489.24(d)(4-5)
	A participating hospital may not delay providing an appropriate medical screening examination required under paragraph (a) of this section or further medical examination and treatment required under paragraph (d)(1) of this section in order to inquire about the individual's method of payment or insurance status.
	
	
	
	

	
	
	A participating hospital may not seek, or direct an individual to seek, authorization from the individual's insurance company for screening or stabilization services to be furnished by a hospital, physician, or nonphysician practitioner to an individual until after the hospital has provided the appropriate medical screening examination required under paragraph (a) of this section, and initiated any further medical examination and treatment that may be required to stabilize the emergency medical condition under paragraph (d)(1) of this section.  


	
	
	
	

	
	
	An emergency physician or nonphysician practitioner is not precluded from contacting the individual's physician at any time to seek advice regarding the individual's medical history and needs that may be relevant to the medical treatment and screening of the patient, as long as this consultation does not inappropriately delay services required under paragraph (a) or paragraphs (d)(1) and (d)(2) of this section.
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Hospitals may follow reasonable registration processes for individuals for whom examination or treatment is required by this section, including asking whether an individual is insured and, if so, what that insurance is, as long as that inquiry does not delay screening or treatment.  Reasonable registration processes may not unduly discourage individuals from remaining for further evaluation.
	
	
	
	

	
	
	A hospital meets the requirements of paragraph (d)(1)(ii) of this section with respect to an individual if the hospital offers to transfer the individual to another medical facility in accordance with paragraph (e) of this section and informs the individual (or a person acting on his or her behalf) of the risks and benefits to the individual of the transfer, but the individual (or a person acting on the individual's behalf) does not consent to the transfer.  The hospital must take all reasonable steps to secure the individual's written informed refusal (or that of a person acting on his or her behalf).  The written document must indicate the person has been informed of the risks and benefits of the transfer and state the reasons for the individual's refusal.  The medical record must contain a description of the proposed transfer that was refused by or on behalf of the individual.


	
	
	
	

	A409
	489.24(e)(1)
	If an individual at a hospital has an emergency medical condition that has not been stabilized (as defined in paragraph (b) of this section), the hospital may not transfer the individual unless the transfer is an appropriate transfer (within the meaning of paragraph (e)(2) of this section); and the individual (or a legally responsible person acting on the individual's behalf) requests the transfer, after being informed of the hospital's obligations under this section and of the risk of transfer. 
	
	
	
	

	
	
	The request must be in writing and indicate the reasons for the request as well as indicate that he or she is aware of the risks and benefits of the transfer.
	
	
	
	

	
	
	A physician (within the meaning of section 1861(r)(1) of the Act) has signed a certification that, based upon the information available at the time of transfer, the medical benefits reasonably expected from the provision of appropriate medical treatment at another medical facility outweigh the increased risks to the individual or, in the case of a woman in labor, to the woman or the unborn child, from being transferred. The certification must contain a summary of the risks and benefits upon which it is based.  Or, if a physician is not physically present in the emergency department at the time an individual is transferred, a qualified medical person (as determined by the hospital in its bylaws or rules and regulations) has signed a certification described in paragraph (e)(1)(ii)(B) of this section after a physician (as defined in section 1861(r)(1) of the Act) in consultation with the qualified medical person, agrees with the certification and subsequently countersigns the certification. The certification must contain a summary of the risks and benefits upon which it is based.


	
	
	
	

	
	
	A transfer to another medical facility will be appropriate only in those cases in which the transferring hospital provides medical treatment within its capacity that minimizes the risks to the individual's health and, in the case of a woman in labor, the health of the unborn child and the receiving facility has available space and qualified personnel for the treatment of the individual and has agreed to accept transfer of the individual and to provide appropriate medical treatment.
	
	
	
	

	
	
	The transferring hospital sends to the receiving facility all medical records (or copies thereof) related to the emergency condition which the individual has presented that are available at the time of the transfer, including available history, records related to the individual's emergency medical condition, observations of signs or symptoms, preliminary diagnosis, results of diagnostic studies or telephone reports of the studies, treatment provided, results of any tests and the informed written consent or certification (or copy thereof) required under paragraph (e)(1)(ii) of this section, and the name and address of any on-call physician (described in paragraph (g) of this section) who has refused or failed to appear within a reasonable time to provide necessary stabilizing treatment. Other records (e.g., test results not yet available or historical records not readily available from the hospital's files) must be sent as soon as practicable after transfer and the transfer is effected through qualified personnel and transportation equipment, as required, including the use of necessary and medically appropriate life support measures during the transfer.
	
	
	
	

	A410
	489.24(e)(3)
	A participating hospital may not penalize or take adverse action against a physician or a qualified medical person described in paragraph (e)(1)(ii)(C) of this section because the physician or qualified medical person refuses to authorize the transfer of an individual with an emergency medical condition that has not been stabilized, or against any hospital employee because the employee reports a violation of a requirement of this section.
	
	
	
	

	A411
	489.24(f)
	A participating hospital that has specialized capabilities or facilities (including, but not limited to such facilities as burn units, shock-trauma units, neonatal intensive care units, or (with respect to rural areas) regional referral centers) may not refuse to accept from a referring hospital within the boundaries of the United States, an appropriate transfer of an individual who requires such specialized capabilities or facilities if the receiving hospital has the capacity to treat the individual.
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